
For a meeting of the
COUNCIL
to be held on

THURSDAY, 31 JANUARY 2019
at

2.00 PM
in the

SHEKINAH ROOM, JUBILEE CHURCH LIFE CENTRE, 5 LONDON 
ROAD, GRANTHAM, NG31 6EY

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Members of the Council are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the 
items of business listed below.

For those Councillors who wish to attend, prayers will be held in the Shekinah 
Room at 1:55pm before the commencement of the meeting. Please be seated 
by 1:50pm.

1  PUBLIC OPEN FORUM 

The public open forum will commence at 2.00 p.m. and the following formal 
business of the Council will commence at 2.30 p.m. or whenever the public 
open forum ends, if earlier.

2  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

3  DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at 
the meeting.

4  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 3 - 15)

Minutes of the meeting held on 22 November 2018.

5  COMMUNICATIONS (INCLUDING CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS) 
(Page 17)

List of the Chairman’s engagements for noting.

AGENDA



6  DESIGNATION OF MONITORING OFFICER (Pages 19 - 21)

Report LDS348 of the Chairman of the Employment Committee.

7  CHANGES TO BUDGET FRAMEWORK 2018/19 (Pages 23 - 35)

Report CFM484 of the Cabinet Member for Finance.

8  THE LEADER'S REPORT ON URGENT DECISIONS (Pages 37 - 47)

Report LDS342 of the Leader of the Council.

9  MINUTES OF CABINET MEETINGS APPROVED SINCE 22 NOVEMBER 
2019 (Pages 49 - 68)

Report LDS343 of the Leader of the Council.

10  MEMBERS' OPEN QUESTIONS 

A 45-minute period in which members may ask questions of the Leader, 
Cabinet Members, the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees and opposition group leaders excluding the Chairman 
and Vice-Chairman of the Development Management Committee, Licensing 
and Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night Refreshment Licensing 
Committees and Governance and Audit Committee.

The deadline for notices of motion for the Council meeting on Friday, 1 March 2019 is 
2pm on Monday 18 February 2019.



PRESENT
Councillor George Chivers Chairman

Councillor Bob Adams
Councillor Duncan Ashwell
Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth
Councillor Robert Broughton
Councillor Mrs Frances Cartwright
Councillor Michael Cook
Councillor Kelham Cooke
Councillor Rachael Cooke
Councillor Nick Craft
Councillor Felicity Cunningham
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Barry Dobson
Councillor Mike Exton
Councillor Helen Goral
Councillor Breda Griffin
Councillor Graham Jeal
Councillor Michael King
Councillor Ms Jane Kingman
Councillor Matthew Lee
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Councillor Nick Neilson

Councillor Helen Powell
Councillor Robert Reid
Councillor Nick Robins
Councillor Bob Russell
Councillor Ian Selby
Councillor Jacky Smith
Councillor Mrs Judy Smith
Councillor Peter Stephens
Councillor Judy Stevens
Councillor Adam Stokes
Councillor Ian Stokes
Councillor Mrs Sarah Stokes
Councillor Brian Sumner
Councillor Mrs Brenda Sumner
Councillor David Taylor
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew
Councillor Mrs Andrea Webster
Councillor Hannah Westropp
Councillor Paul Wood
Councillor Linda Wootten
Councillor Ray Wootten

OFFICERS OFFICERS

Chief Executive (Aidan Rave)
Strategic Director (Debbie Muddimer, 
Paul Thomas)
Solicitor to the Council (Lucy Youles)

Assistant Director, Resources (Richard 
Wyles)
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

MINUTES
COUNCIL
THURSDAY, 22 NOVEMBER 2018
2.00 PM

3

Agenda Item 4



45. PUBLIC OPEN FORUM

Question 1

From: Katie Burris, Grantham

To: Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council

SKDC have a policy and procedure for events taking place on SKDC land, on which 
the Boxing Day event takes place. Why have the Belvoir Hunt Plc not completed the 
SKDC ‘Events Application Pack’  which includes a risk assessment and liability 
insurance; as per your own guidelines? 

In his response the Leader explained that while the event took place on land owned 
by SKDC the event was managed by the Belvoir Hunt. The document transferring the 
land to the SKDC predecessor (the Mayor Alderman and Burgesses of Grantham) 
included a right to use the land for horse sports. He added that the organisers were 
in the process of submitting the event application form to SKDC, which would include 
a risk assessment. It was also the responsibility of the organisers to ensure that they 
had the necessary public liability insurance in place and to ensure the health, safety 
and welfare of all involved including participants and members of the public.

Supplementary question:

On Boxing Day 2016 one of the hounds was hit by a taxi on the road. This could 
have been a disaster if the car had swerved into the crowd. Is this not reason enough 
to ensure the roads are closed and thorough risk assessment is completed? Why 
isn’t the road being closed?

The Leader explained that South Kesteven District Council did not have responsibility 
for road closures. It was the responsibility of the event organiser to apply for a road 
closure, which would then be determined by Lincolnshire County Council.

Question 2

From: Katie Burris, Grantham

To: Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council

SKDC is supporting this event at the request of the Charter Trustees as SKDC is 
providing the land, barriers and SKDC equipment and staff to clean up after the 
event. Do the Charter Trustees have their own liability insurance or is this covered by 
SKDC liability insurance?

The Leader confirmed that the Council had its own public liability insurance which 
would respond if a claim was made against the Council as the land and property 
owner however it could not be held liable for the actions of others. It was a question 
for the Charter Trustees whether they had their own public liability insurance.

4



Question 3

From: Nicholas Bradley, Foston

To: Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council

The Dogs (Fouling of Land) Act 1996 and the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014 create an offence of the failure to pick up dog mess because of the 
risk to public health. Who is responsible for this legal requirement and has this been 
addressed in the planning of the event [the meeting of the Belvoir hunt]?

In his response, the Leader stated that it was a requirement for dog owners to clean 
up after their dogs. Arrangements would need to be made by dog owners to pick up 
any fouling otherwise the owners would be liable for a fixed penalty notice. The 
organisers of the event would be expected to consider how it will deal with any dog 
fouling.

Supplementary question:

Will SKDC staff be responsible for the disinfection of the area after the event and are 
they aware of the requirement to use a DEFRA approved disinfectant after an animal 
gathering event?

The Leader responded, stating that the event did not meet the definition of an “animal 
gathering event” under the Animal Gatherings Order 2010 as it did not include cattle, 
deer, goats, sheep or pigs, therefore no specific disinfection was required.

Question 4

From: Nicholas Bradley, Foston

To: Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council

[In respect of the Belvoir Hunt] will SKDC Environmental Health or Charter Trustees 
be responsible for the ‘please wash your hands after touching the animals’ signs as 
per the new legislation covering public health and the risk of zoonotic diseases to 
members of the public?

The Leader explained that the Health and Safety Executive issued guidance for 
preventing or controlling ill health from animal contact at visitor attractions, including 
temporary events. The organiser had legal duties under health and safety legislation 
to protect visitors and would need to address this issue as part of its risk assessment.

Supplementary question:

Have the SKDC Environmental Health department been involved in this?

5



Anyone seeking to hold an event on the Council’s land could contact the 
Environmental Health Team for advice but it is the responsibility of organisers to 
ensure that any necessary measures were in place.

Question 5

From: Chris Noon, Grantham

To: Councillor Ray Wootten

SKDC regulations require an application for a temporary event notice. One of the 
stipulations being: serving alcohol to members of a private club. I would consider the 
Mayor serving alcohol to the Belvoir Hunt ‘members of a private club.’ The Belvoir 
Hunt also collects charity money in buckets. They also require a street collection 
licence as per SKDC regulations. Therefore, will the Charter Trustees be responsible 
for applying for the event notice and the street collection licence as they are hosting 
the event by invitation to the Belvoir Hunt and its supporters.

Councillor Ray Wootten responded to the question, stating that a temporary event 
notice was not required for this event because the supply of alcohol was free of 
charge and not restricted to members of the hunt. He added that an application did 
need to be made for a street collection licence, which could be done free of charge 
by submitting an online form. After the event the charity or organisation would need 
to submit a return showing the amounts collected and any expenses incurred.

He confirmed that an application for a street collection licence had been received that 
morning [22 November 2018].

Supplementary question:

Who has applied for the street collection licence? And who do I approach to get a 
copy of it?

Councillor Wootten stated that the application for a street collection licence had been 
submitted by the Belvoir Hunt; anyone wanting to view a copy of the application could 
ask the Council.

Question 6

From: Chris Noon, Grantham

To: Councillor Linda Wootten

The Boxing Day Hunt Meet is described as an ‘event’ in which the dogs are not 
‘working or being used for sporting purposes.’ Therefore, the legislation covering the 
‘Control of Dogs Order 1992’ and the exemption in the Act of not being required to 
wear a collar or lead do not apply.

6



Therefore, the dogs are dangerously ‘out of control in a public place’ as per the 
‘Dangerous Dogs Act’ which states ‘your dog is considered dangerously out of 
control if it; injures someone or makes someone worried that it might injure them.’ Is 
SKDC or the Charter Trustees taking responsibility for this risk?

Councillor Linda Wootten stated that under the Control of Dogs Order 1992 there 
was a further exemption under 2(a) for “any pack of hounds”, so they were 
specifically exempted from the requirements to wear a collar with ID while in a public 
place. It was the responsibility of event organisers to have health and safety 
arrangements in place to control risks. 

Supplementary question:

Have SKDC or the Charter Trustees done their own risk assessment or taken this 
into consideration and who do we approach to get a copy of it?

In response to the supplementary question, Councillor Linda Wootten responded that 
the Council had not undertaken its own risk assessment however the Belvoir Hunt 
had informed the Council that it would be submitting an event application form, 
alongside which a risk assessment had to be supplied.

Clarification was made that, to request to review a copy of the risk assessment 
following its submission, contact could be made through the Chief Executive.

46. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Benn, Coutts, Evans, Forman, 
Kaberry-Brown, Manterfield, Mapp, Morgan, Sampson, Turner, Ward and Wilkins.

47. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

No interests were disclosed.

48. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 27 SEPTEMBER 2018

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2018 were proposed, seconded 
and agreed as a correct record.

49. COMMUNICATIONS (INCLUDING CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS)

The Council noted the Chairman’s engagements.

(a) South Kesteven - best kept village

The Cabinet Member for Environment referred to a South Kesteven best kept village 
competition, which the Council had run with the Council for Protection of Rural 
England alongside a countywide competition. The adjudication criteria considered 

7



village appearance and condition, green spaces, public premises, private premises, 
religious buildings and memorials, business premises and overall community effort. 

Two of the winners and two of the runners up had also won their categories in the 
Lincolnshire event, which had been run by the Campaign for the Protection of Rural 
England. 

Members of the Council were invited to congratulate the winners and runners up 
across each of the different categories as they were presented with their certificates 
both for the South Kesteven and Lincolnshire competitions:

 Class 1 (villages with a population between 100 and 1,000) winner: Harlaxton 
(also the winner of the Lincolnshire award for the same category)

 Class1 runner up: Denton (also the runner-up for the Lincolnshire award for 
the same category)

 Class 2 (villages with a population between 1,001 and 2,500) winner: Claypole 
(also the winner of the Lincolnshire award for the same category)

 Class 2 runner up: Great Gonerby (also the runner-up for the Lincolnshire 
award for the same category)

 Large village/small town winner: Market Deeping

(b) Apportionment of seats on committees

The Leader stated that there was urgent business to be considered at the meeting 
and requested a recess so that he could speak to the other Group Leaders about the 
item. The adjournment would also allow Members time to read report number 
LDS332, which was circulated at the meeting.

14:30 to 14:42 the meeting adjourned.

When the meeting reconvened the Leader explained that report LDS332 had been 
brought before the Council because Councillor Broughton had given written 
notification that he was moving from the Independent Group to the Conservative 
Group. This change affected the Council’s political balance; consequential 
adjustments had to be made so that membership of the Council’s committees 
complied with political balance rules. 

It was proposed, seconded and on being put to the vote, AGREED that the following 
appointments are made to the membership of the Council’s 
Committees:

1. Councillor Broughton to fill the Conservative seat on the Licensing Committee 
and the Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night Refreshment Committee

2. Councillor Dilks to fill the Independent Group seat on the Licensing Committee 
and the Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night Refreshment Licensing 
Committee (this seat was gifted)

8



3. Councillor Sampson to remain on the Constitution Committee

4. Councillor Craft to replace Councillor Baxter on the Shareholder Committee

5. The Conservatives to continue to gift one seat on the Chief Executive’s Appeal 
panel to the Independent Group

(c) Budget Council meeting - 2019

The Chairman stated that he had received a request to change the date of the 
Budget Council meeting from Thursday 28 February 2019 to Friday 1 March 2019 to 
ensure that information from all precepting authorities was available when the 
Council agreed its Budget. The proposed change of date was to prevent calling an 
additional meeting in the event that not all precept information had been received by 
the date on which the Council was due to determine its Budget.

Consequently it was proposed, seconded and, on being put to the vote, AGREED 
that the Council meeting scheduled for Thursday 28 February 2019 be moved to 
Friday 1 March 2019. 

50. REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES

The Chief Executive presented report number LDS329 in his capacity as Returning 
Officer. He explained that the Council was required to carry out compulsory reviews 
of polling arrangements every five years. He added that while the current review was 
required to be completed by January 2020 it had been conducted at this time so that 
changes could be implemented prior to the district and parish council elections in 
May 2019. He gave an overview of the consultation process that was followed. 

While the review indicated that most polling arrangements worked well, the Chief 
Executive highlighted that seven changes to polling places had been proposed in 
response to feedback that had arisen at recent elections or where other venues were 
no longer available. Changes were also proposed in respect of three polling district 
boundaries. Consultation had indicated a need for an additional polling station in 
Stamford St. Mary’s Ward, which would continue to be explored. In conclusion the 
Chief Executive stated that, if approved, the changes would take effect from 1 
December 2018.

In proposing the recommendations in report LDS329, reference was made to the 
extent of the consultation that had been undertaken. Members also noted that there 
were some instances where proposals included moving some polling stations away 
from schools. The recommendation was seconded. Both the proposer and the 
seconder expressed their thanks to the team for their work in conducting the review. 

On being put to the vote, it was AGREED: 

1. To approve the proposals setting out changes to polling places as detailed in 
paragraph 2.2 of report LDS329.

9



2. To approve the proposals setting out changes to polling districts as detailed in 
paragraph 2.3 of report LDS329.

3. To approve the revised polling districts for the Stamford St. Mary’s Ward and 
delegates authority to the Chief Executive as the Returning Officer to approve 
any additional polling station in consultation with the Ward Members.

4. That the approved revised polling districts and polling places take effect from 
the publication of the Electoral Register on 1 December 2018.

51. COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - CORBY GLEN PARISH COUNCIL

The recommendations in report LDS328 were proposed and seconded. Reference 
was made to the feedback that had been received from local residents and the 
projected increase in electorate. Support was also expressed from the local Ward 
Member. On being put to the vote, the proposition was approved and Council 
AGREED: 

1. That the number of members on Corby Glen Parish Council is increased from 
seven to nine.

2. To the making of the draft Reorganisation Order, as set out at Appendix 1 to 
report number LDS328, in accordance with the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Health Act 2007.

52. ESTABLISHMENT OF A WORKING GROUP TO UNDERTAKE A REVIEW 
OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES IN PREPARATION FOR THE MUNICIPAL 
YEAR FROM MAY 2019

In proposing the recommendations in report number LDS331, the Deputy Leader 
referred to the scrutiny arrangements that had been introduced in April 2017 and the 
timing of the review of the way all of the Council’s committees operated to ensure 
any revisions were in place in time for the 2019/20 municipal year. As part of his 
proposition the Deputy Leader announced those Committee Chairmen who would sit 
on the working group: the Chairmen of the Growth and Communities and Wellbeing 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees, the Development Management Committee, the 
Shareholder Committee and the Governance and Audit Committee. He added that 
the working group would also consider any changes in respect of other committees, 
including the Development Management Committee. The proposition was seconded.

During debate on the item, clarification was sought about whether it was still the 
intention that Opposition Group Leaders would sit on the working group, as only 
Committee Chairmen were named during the proposer’s speech. It was confirmed 
that Group Leaders would still form part of the working group; specific reference had 
been made by the proposer to the Committee Chairmen as they were not listed 
within the report.

10



A number of Members stated that they welcomed the review and looked forward to 
improving the way in which the Council’s committees operated. One Member asked 
whether the review could look at how unaligned Members might be granted a seat on 
the Council’s committees. Speakers highlighted the value of both pre- and post-
decision scrutiny, while reference was made to scrutiny of the draft Budget for 
2018/19 where it was considered the current arrangements had worked well. 
Comments were also made about the value of independent chairmanship of scrutiny.

In summing up, the Deputy Leader stated that any Member who wished to feed any 
items into the review could contact him.

On being put to the vote, the proposition was AGREED:

1. That a working group of nine Members of the Council, consisting of:

 Councillor Kelham Cooke, the Deputy Leader of the Council (Cabinet 
Member with responsibility for governance) 

 Councillor  Robert Reid, the Chairman of the Growth Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

 Councillor Martin Wilkins, the Chairman of the Development 
Management Committee

 Councillor Barry Dobson, the Chairman of the Shareholder Committee
 Councillor Ray Wootten, the Chairman of the Communities and 

Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee
 Councillor Ian Stokes, the Chairman of the Governance and Audit 

Committee
 Councillor Phil Dilks, the leader of the Labour Group
 Councillor Paul Wood, the leader of the Independent Group
 Councillor Nick Craft, the leader of the SK Independent Group

be appointed to undertake a review of the committees of the Council in 
preparation for the municipal year from May 2019.

2. That the findings and recommendations of the working group be reported to 
Council on 1 March 2019.

53. ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION - STAMFORD

The Cabinet Member for Growth and Communication presented report number DM16 
which proposed an Article 4 Direction covering Stamford Conservation Area to 
protect its appearance. The introduction of an Article 4 Direction had been subject to 
public consultation, with the comments being considered by the Growth Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee, which had made recommendations in support of the Article 
4 Direction to Cabinet, which in turn also endorsed the introduction of a Direction. 
The recommendation in the report was proposed and seconded.

Support was expressed by several Members who represented Wards in Stamford, 
recognising the significance of its heritage. The measure was considered to be 

11



proportionate; providing protection without stifling growth. A comment was made that 
following the implementation of the Direction in Stamford any lessons learned could 
be applied to other towns and villages where similar protections may be beneficial.

In response to a question, the Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications 
stated that there had been no single occurrence that had been the catalyst for the 
Article 4 Direction.

A vote was taken and the proposition was carried. Council AGREED to confirm the 
designation of an Article 4 Direction for Stamford Conservation Area as attached at 
Appendix 1 to report DM16 and the cancellation of the existing Warrenne Keep 
Article 4 Direction, both effective from 1 December 2018, together with the 
introduction of a fee of £206 for each planning application arising from the Direction 
and with any income surplus generated from the Article 4 Direction ring-fenced for 
future investment on the area covered by the Direction.

54. MEETINGS OF THE CABINET

Members noted the minutes of the Cabinet meetings held on 6 September 2018 and 
4 October 2018 as appended to report number LDS330.

At the Cabinet meeting held on 6 September 2018, a question had been asked about 
the introduction of a Saturday market in Market Deeping. The Cabinet Member for 
Visitor and Retail Economy updated Members stating that the County Council 
consultation on the Road Closure Order was underway and confirmed that 
arrangements were on track for the market to be delivered by Easter 2019.

A question was also asked about whether, following the Cabinet’s decision to form a 
grounds maintenance company, a non-executive director had been appointed and if 
so, who they were and whether they were remunerated. The Cabinet Member for 
Environment responded that as yet no one had been appointed and no decisions had 
been made about how the non-executive directorship would work.

55. MEMBERS' OPEN QUESTIONS

Question 1

Councillor Wood referred to a question that had been put to the Cabinet Member for 
Housing at the last meeting of Council. The question related to the fitting of gas 
boilers that had subsequently been found to have a design fault. Councillor Wood 
asked the Cabinet Member for Housing what action had been taken since the last 
meeting of Council.

The Cabinet Member for Housing stated that enquiries were progressing and that the 
Council had written to the manufacturer and other stakeholders; a response was still 
awaited. The Cabinet Member for Housing agreed to forward to Councillor Wood the 
information that had been shared with Councillor Dilks following his question at the 
last meeting of Council.

12



Question 2

Councillor Craft asked where he could find out which charities and good causes had 
benefited from LotterySK and how much they had been given.

The Deputy Leader stated that this information should be published on the charities 
and good causes page of the LotterySK website, committing to check and confirm 
directly to Councillor Craft.

Question 3

Councillor Baxter referred to a recent economic summit held at Grimsthorpe Castle. 
He stated that he had been advised that as the capacity at the summit was not 
sufficient to accommodate all Councillors, the Leader would speak to the Council 
about the event. Councillor Baxter enquired when information about the event would 
be shared with Councillors.

The Leader stated that he continued to talk about the summit and the Council’s 
growth ambitions at all sorts of meetings. He added that he would respond to 
requests from Councillors to address them about the summit. He said he had 
received positive feedback from the business community and expressed 
disappointment that the only negativity he had experienced in respect of the event 
had been from within the Council Chamber.

Question 4

Councillor Selby asked whether, given the strong feelings that Margaret Thatcher 
could provoke, the Leader agreed that there should be a local referendum on 
whether her statue should be brought to Grantham.

The Leader referred to Baroness Thatcher’s achievements as an international 
stateswoman and the longest-serving Prime Minister of the twentieth century. She 
was also the first woman and the first scientist to become Prime Minister. He related 
the link to her scientific work with what was emerging as the unique selling point for 
Grantham. He added that in his time, Sir Isaac Newton was equally as controversial.

The Leader concluded by saying that a commitment had been made that no public 
money would be spent on the erection of the statue, nor would he consider spending 
public money on a referendum.

Question 5

Councillor Peter Stephens referred to compensation that was being requested by 
Network Rail in respect of the Grantham Southern Relief Road and asked how 
negotiations were proceeding.

13



The Leader stated that he would be happy to write to all Councillors giving details of 
how matters were progressing, highlighting the importance of the Southern Relief 
Road for the delivery of other developments in Grantham.

56. NOTICES OF MOTION GIVEN UNDER ARTICLE 4.9:

(a) Councillor Phil Dilks

Councillor Dilks proposed his motion:

This Council resolves that all current and future applications relating to major sites 
are referred to the Council’s Development Management Committee for 
determination.

In presenting his motion, Councillor Dilks made reference to a recent major planning 
application that had been determined by officers under delegated authority. While 
this was acceptable under the Council’s Constitution he asked that whether, in the 
future, all major applications be brought before the Development Management 
Committee. He referred again to the recent application, which he felt would have 
benefitted from consideration by the Development Management Committee as it 
would have provided a forum for local interested parties to attend and put forward 
their views. He believed that this would have provided greater transparency and 
accountability of decision-making, and would help ensure the protection of the 
Council’s reputation. 

The motion was seconded. The seconder referred to his experience of the 
Development Management Committee and how he had believed that all major 
applications were automatically considered by the Committee. He mentioned that 
some of the applications considered by the Committee were minor in scale when 
compared to the major application determined under delegated powers. He reiterated 
previous sentiments that had been expressed about transparency.

Those Members who spoke in favour of the motion further referred to the recent 
application determined under delegated authority; they referred to a pre-application 
briefing that had taken place between the developer and Committee Members, at 
which it was intimated that the application would be brought before the Committee. 
Members did not feel that it was appropriate for the Committee Chairman to decide 
which major applications should be considered by the Committee.

Members who spoke against the proposition referred to the Constitutional provision 
that allowed any Member to call-in any application for consideration by Committee. 
Frustration was expressed by some of the speakers who had had applications within 
their Ward about which there was no local concern, called to Committee by 
Councillors from other parts of the district. Reference was also made to the 
professional expertise of the Council’s planning officers. One Member stated the 
wording of any change to the scheme of delegation would need to be carefully 
considered to ensure that it was accurately defined, noting that the terminology used 

14



in the motion referred to “major sites” whereas the nationally laid out definition was 
“applications for major developments”. It was suggested that any changes to the 
Committee’s responsibilities as set out in the Scheme of Delegation could be 
considered as part of the review of the Council’s Committees, which had been 
agreed at this meeting. This would provide a formal process could be followed to 
ensure clarity and accuracy and that all appropriate parties were consulted.

There was also some concern that taking all major applications to Committee may 
swamp it with unnecessary applications, particularly when considering the timescales 
within which major applications should be determined and within the context of the 
Council’s growth agenda. This was rebutted by supporters of the motion who used 
the St. Peter’s Hill public realm project as an example of a major application that was 
brought before the Committee and determined within a short period of time.

The proposer of the motion was given the opportunity to sum up. He stated that while 
he recognised the Council’s growth ambitions, determination of applications still 
needed to follow a procedure. He queried the existence of the Development 
Management Committee if it was not to consider major applications. He once again 
highlighted the minor nature of some of the applications that were currently brought 
before the Committee. The proposer acknowledged that the wording could be 
tightened, referring to applications rather than sites, and amended his proposition 
(with the support of his seconder) to:

This Council resolves that all current and future applications relating to major 
applications are referred to the Council’s Development Management Committee for 
determination.

In accordance with Article 4.13.4 of the Council’s Constitution, a request was made 
that a recorded vote be taken however the request was not supported by the required 
ten Members of the Council. A vote was taken by show of hands on the revised 
motion, which was lost and the Council AGREED to not support Councillor Dilks’ 
notice of motion.

57. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting was closed at 16:04.

15



This page is intentionally left blank



List of Chairman’s Engagements
23 November 2018 – 31 January 2019

Date Ref Organisation and Event Location
Sunday 
25.11.18 BS013 Stamford Light Switch on

(Vice Chairman) Stamford

Sunday 
25.11.18 GC061 Grantham Christmas Market and Light Switch 

on St Peter’s Hill, Grantham

Sunday 
25.11.18 GC056 ABF the Soldiers Charity

A Reception and Curry Lunch
Prince William of Gloucester 
Barracks, Grantham

Sunday 
25.11.18 BS010 South Holland Civic Service

(Vice Chairman) All Saints Church, Moulton

Sunday 
09.12.18 GC067 Christmas in the Park Wyndham Park, Grantham

Wednesday 
12.12.18 GC063 Grantham Choral Society Carol Concert Finkin Street Methodist Church, 

Grantham

Tuesday 
17.12.18 GC062 Visit to Grantham General Post Office Wharf Road, Grantham

Tuesday
18.12.18 GC068 Walton School Carol Service St Wulfram’s Church, Grantham

Friday 
21.12.18 GC009 Chairman’s Annual Lunch Belton Park Golf Club, Grantham

Sunday 
30.12.18 GC077 Jump Revolution Springfield Ind Estate, Grantham 

Sunday 
13.01.19 GC065 Grantham Mayor’s Civic Service St Wulfram’s Church, Grantham

Friday 
25.01.19 GC069 Showman’s Guild Annual Civic Luncheon Nottingham Belfry Hotel, 

Nottingham 
Monday 
28.01.19 GC078 Unveiling a new, specially created WW1 

Memorial Bench in Wyndham Park Wyndham Park, Grantham

17

Agenda Item 5

https://www.bing.com/local?lid=YN1029x6961757453039802894&id=YN1029x6961757453039802894&q=Jump+Revolution&name=Jump+Revolution&cp=52.8983192443848~-0.64725399017334&ppois=52.8983192443848_-0.64725399017334_Jump+Revolution&FORM=SNAPST


This page is intentionally left blank



Council

Report of: Councillor Graham Jeal, 

Chairman of the Employment Committee

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Council

31 January 2019

Designation of Monitoring Officer (LDS348)

Decision
Proposal:

Legislative duty 

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Ben Bix, Head of Governance
Tel 01476 406515
Email: ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk 
18 January 2019

Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director Resources
Tel: 01476 406301
Email: debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 21 January 2019

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive
Tel: 01476 406100
E-mail: aidan.rave@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 21 January 2019

Councillor Graham Jeal, Chairman of the Employment Committee
E-mail: graham.jeal@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 22 January 2019

SUMMARY
To receive the recommendation of the Employment Committee on the designation of the 
Assistant Chief Executive as Monitoring Officer. 

19

Agenda Item 6



RECOMMENDATIONS

1. The Employment Committee recommends the designation of the Assistant Chief 
Executive, Lee Sirdifield as the Monitoring Officer. 

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 Section 5 (1) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires the 
Council to designate one of its officers as the Monitoring Officer.  The Monitoring 
Officer may not be the Council’s Chief Finance (Section 151) Officer nor the 
Head of Paid Service (Chief Executive).

1.2 The Monitoring Officer has statutory duties and responsibilities relating to the 
Council’s constitution and its arrangements for effective governance.  These 
duties include:

 Maintenance of the Constitution 
 To ensure the lawfulness of decision making
 To be responsible for matters relating to the Councillor Conduct
 The registration of Members’ interests

1.3 The Employment Committee considered a report of the Chief Executive on 9 
January proposing that Lee Sirdifield, Assistant Chief Executive, be 
recommended by the Employment Committee for designation as Monitoring 
Officer, whilst the options for a permanent appointment were considered.

1.4 Members felt that the recommendation of the Chief Executive provided sufficient 
endorsement for them to feel able to recommend to Council the designation of 
Mr. Sirdifield as Monitoring Officer, with a long-term solution to be presented to 
the Employment Committee within six months.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 A designation must be made to ensure that the Council complies with its duty 
under Section 5 (1) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 to designate 
one of its officers as the Monitoring Officer.  

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no additional resource implications in designating one of the Council’s 
officers to the role of Monitoring Officer. 

20



4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
There are no appropriate 
arrangements in place to 
discharge the functions of 
Monitoring Officer

Designate one of the Council’s 
officers as Monitoring Officer

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 There are none. 

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are none. 

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 There are none. 

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 This report discharges the Council’s duty under Section 5 (1) of the Local 
Government and Housing Act 1989 to designate one of its officers as the 
Monitoring Officer. 

8.2 A further report to the Employment Committee must be made by July 2019. 

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 There are none. 

10. APPENDICES

10.1 There are none. 

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.1 Report and minutes of the Employment Committee, 9 January 2019.  

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=638&MId=
3652 

21

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=638&MId=3652
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=638&MId=3652


This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Council

31 January 2019

Changes to Budget Framework 2018/19
(CFM484)

Decision
Proposal:

Budget Framework Proposal

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Cllr Adam Stokes- Cabinet Member for Finance

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication

Richard Wyles, Assistant Director - Resources
Tel: 01476 406210
Email: r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date:  21 January 2019 

Alison Hall-Wright – Head of Financial Services
Tel: 01476 406208
Email: Alison.hallwright@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 21 January 2019

Debbie Muddimer, Strategic Director - Resources
Tel: 01476 406301
Email: debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 22 January 2019 

Cllr Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance
E-mail: adam.stokes@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 22 January 2019  

SUMMARY 
This report contains proposed changes to the budget framework that was approved by 
Council on 1 March 2018 and in accordance with the Constitution, Council approval is 
required to amend the framework.

23

Agenda Item 7

mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:Alison.hallwright@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:debbie.muddimer@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:adam.stokes@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION

Council is asked to:

1. Approve the allocation of the projected business rate financial growth as set out at 
paragraph 2.4.

2. Approve the changes to earmarked reserves as set out at paragraph 2.7
3. Approve that the utilisation of the Invest to Save reserve be delegated to the 

Cabinet member for Finance in consultation with the Council’s s151 officer.
4. Approve that the utilisation of the property maintenance reserve and the ICT 

reserve be delegated to the Cabinet member for Business Transformation and 
Commissioning in consultation with the Council’s s151 officer.

5. Approve the budget change for the cinema development complex from £5.4m to 
£6.280m to include the fit out changes necessary for the Technology and 
Innovation Centre. 

6. Approve the Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership funding offer of 
£2m subject to agreement of the funding conditions to be delegated to the Cabinet 
Member for Communities, Health, Wellbeing and Skills.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 This report contains details of proposed changes to the funding levels the 
Council is forecast to receive during the financial year arising from the strong 
financial performance of the Lincolnshire business rate pilot.  This is a one-off 
financial boost and Cabinet has carefully considered the utilisation of this 
additional funding and their allocation proposals are contained in the report.
The report also contains information with respect to changes to earmarked 
reserves and proposals for the utilisation of the invest to save, property 
maintenance and ICT reserves. 

2. FINANCIAL UPDATE

2018/19 100% Business Rates Pilot for Lincolnshire

2.1 Members will be aware that the Council is currently part of the Lincolnshire 
(including North East Lincolnshire) pilot area.  During the year careful 
monitoring and forecasting of the pilot has been undertaken by specialist 
financial advisors working alongside technical officers from each participating 
authority.

2.2 The current projection of performance for each authority as at quarter 2 is 
shown as:

Lincolnshire Pool Projected Business Rate 
Income above baseline

£’000
Lincolnshire Pilot Gain 34,574
South Kesteven 2,291
Total 36,865

24



2.3 It can be seen that based on current projections the additional growth for South 
Kesteven for 2018/19 is currently forecast to be £1.95m.  It is important to note 
that this is a forecast as at 30 September and could change during the rest of 
the year if there are significant changes, for example, High Street retail closures 
and/or business closures.

2.4 Should the Council receive a one-off financial gain of £1.95m as currently 
projected, it is for Council to decide how the additional funding should be 
utilised. Given the current forecast position on the general fund revenue budget 
it is recommended that the first call on the business rate gain is addressing the 
overspend. Based on the forecasting undertaken the overspend as at 31 March 
2019 is expected to be in the region of £681k.  It is anticipated that the forecast 
will change as the remainder of the year progresses.  Therefore, the proposed 
allocations may vary depending on the final outturn position but the following 
are the current proposals:

Detail £’000
Business Rates gain

Allocated to the following:

1,950

Balancing the 2018/19 revenue budget (681)
Funding of new Priority Growth Projects in 2018/19 (see 2.5 below) (260)
Funding of one off urgent items arising in 2018/19 (see 2.6 below) (149)
Creation of a Small Grants for Local Businesses scheme (50)
Formation of a Property maintenance reserve in order to fund 
emergency repairs that may arise during the course of the financial year

(110)

Balance remaining to be set aside in a specific reserve to finance future 
Growth/Regeneration projects 

(700)

The proposed allocation referred to above was considered by both the Growth 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 28 November 2018 and Cabinet on 20 
December 2018.

2.5 The following is a proposed allocation of funding to drive forward key priority 
projects themed within the headings:

Heading Proposed Allocation 
£’000

Leisure 80
Town Centres 63

Property Development 55
Business and Skills 62
Total 260

 

25



2.6 There are a number of emerging priority expenditure items that are proposed 
to be undertaken in this financial year.  These items are one-off in nature and 
are summarised below:

Heading Proposed 
Allocation 
£’000

Summary commentary

Broad Street Stamford 
building works

25 Emergency repairs to Council owned 
premises

Red Lion Square 
Stamford feasibility 
works

12 Feasibility study for works to Red 
Lion Square building repairs, 
internal refurbishment 

Asbestos Management 
remedial works

50 Ongoing compliance works in 
accordance with Asbestos 
Regulations 2012 

Closed churchyards 40 Responsive repairs to specific close 
churchyards

Cyber security risk 
remediation 

10 Review of the Council’s compliance 
arrangements in relation to 
Government Digital Services

Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

12 Feasibility exercise to consider the 
business case for the introduction of 
CIL

Total 149

Review of Earmarked Reserves

2.7 The opportunity has been taken to review the Council’s earmarked reserves as 
part of the preparatory works for the development of the 2019/20 budget 
proposals.  This review has focused on the discretionary reserves that are 
primarily used to fund specific projects and expenditure that are one-off in 
nature.  The objective of this review was to ensure that the funds are earmarked 
in line with priorities and to consolidate reserves if appropriate. These are 
summarised as:

Reserve 
Heading

Forecast 
balance as 
at 31 March 
2019

£’000

Movement 

£’000

Proposed 
new balance

£’000

Comments

Service 
improvement 
reserve

355 (355) 0 Consolidated 
into Invest to 
Save reserve 

Invest to Save 
reserve

645 355 1,000 Transferred 
from Service 
improvement 
reserve

26



Reserve 
Heading

Forecast 
balance as 
at 31 March 
2019

£’000

Movement 

£’000

Proposed 
new balance

£’000

Comments

Property 
Maintenance 
reserve

0 110 110 Allocation from 
business rate 
growth.  
Established to 
provide funds 
for works that re 
required to 
Council owned 
buildings for 
which there is 
not annual 
revenue 
budget.  

ICT reserve 120 200 320 Allocation from 
local priorities 
reserve

Regeneration 
reserve

0 1,200 1,200 £700k from 
business rate 
growth and 
£500k from 
Local Priorities 
Reserve. 

Property Maintenance reserve

2.8 The primary purpose of this reserve is to provide in-year funding to support 
unforeseen expenditure that may arise in respect of the Council’s asset portfolio 
that would have a detrimental impact on the asset if not treated.  It is 
recommended that the Cabinet member for Business Transformation and 
Commissioning approve any in-year expenditure in accordance with business 
need.

ICT reserve

2.9 The ICT reserve is included as part of the Council approved budget framework 
and is utilised to respond to fluctuations in business requirements, unforeseen 
costs and in year ICT investment opportunities that may arise.  The reserve can 
be utilised to ‘smooth out’ financial volatility and ease pressure during each 
financial year.  It is recommended that the Cabinet member for Business 
Transformation and Commissioning in consultation with the Council’s s151 
officer approve any in-year expenditure in accordance with business need.    

27



Regeneration Reserve

2.10 In order to provide the available financing for the acquisition of key strategic 
assets it is proposed to create a specific reserve for this purpose.  The Council 
will use a combination of both internal and external borrowing as required which 
will incur a MRP (minimum revenue provision) allocation and possible interest 
costs (where external borrowing is undertaken).  These costs will be charged 
directly to the reserve in order to avoid any budgetary pressure on the annual 
revenue budgets.  The recent approved purchase approved by Council on 27 
September will be financed from this reserve for the period the asset is held by 
the Council.   

Invest to Save Reserve

2.11 An invest to save reserve has been approved by Council and is included in the 
2018/19 budget framework.  The primary purpose of the reserve is to ‘pump 
prime’ initiatives for projects that clearly demonstrate within a business case 
that cashable savings could be realised following a one off injection of 
investment.  Examples of these initiatives include investment in modern 
equipment which then releases ongoing sustainable savings through cashable 
efficiencies.  However, in some scenario’s the investment can be relatively 
speculative as the cost incurred may be to investigate a potential cost saving 
opportunity.  Initiatives of this kind should also be encouraged where supported 
by a business proposal. 

In order to accelerate these proposals, it is important there is a mechanism in 
place that allows the resource to be release without unnecessary delay in order 
to achieve the savings as early as possible.  Therefore, it is recommended that 
delegation is given to the Cabinet Member for Finance in consultation with the 
Council’s s151 officer to consider and approve proposals for its use.  

3. AMENDMENTS TO THE 2018/19 BUDGET FRAMEWORK

Cinema Complex Development

3.1 The Council has been successful in its bid to The Greater Lincolnshire Local 
Enterprise Partnership (GLLEP) for £2m of funding towards the Cinema 
Complex Development, specifically the delivery of a new Technology and 
Innovation Centre in partnership with a higher education provider.  The centre 
will be located on the first floor of the new cinema development.  

3.2 The centre will provide a new approach in delivering higher education and 
further education courses to the local economy and wider geographical 
catchment area whilst helping to deliver the vision of creating a vibrant cultural 
quarter within Grantham to the benefit of the local economy.

3.3 It is usual practice that the award of such funding comes with conditions that 
must be adhered to and the current draft conditions are set out in Appendix B.   
At the present time the negotiations are nearing completion and it is requested 
that Council approve the increase in the budget from £5.4m to £6.280m and 

28



delegate the approval of the grant conditions to the Cabinet member for 
Communities, Health, Wellbeing and Skills.

3.4 The current draft funding conditions set out that the £2M funding is to be 
applied to the project as follows:

Contribution to cinema shell – being 
works already undertaken

£1.34M

Public Realm £0.1M
Capital fit out of the Technology and 
Innovation Centre

£0.56M

Total £2M

3.5 The £1.34M contribution to the cinema build and the £100K public realm 
funding will replace the Council’s existing funding commitment from the 
Capital Reserve for this amount.  

3.6 The development of the building as a Technology and Innovation Centre 
requires a change to the budget, to reflect the costs of fit out and there is also 
a requirement for one off revenue funding for the first year. 

3.7 There is also a need for additional Project Management resource to lead this 
project, at an estimated cost of £50k.

3.8 The overall impact is a reduction of £1.020m in the contribution required from 
Council reserves (£1.220m less £0.200m), as shown in the table below:

Existing budget 
(without LLEP funding)

Amended budget 
(with LLEP funding)

Change

£’000 £’000
Capital budget
2018/19 Cinema 
Complex

5,400 6,080 680

Financed by:
Capital Reserves (5,400) (4,180) 1,220
LLEP Funding (0) (1,900) (1,900)
Total (5,400) (6,080) 680

Revenue budget
Project Management 0 50 50
Fit out, set up and 
operating costs yr1

0 150 150

Financed by:
Local Priorities Reserve 0 (200) (200)

4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 Not applicable.

29



5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no resource implications arising from this report.

6. RISK AND MITIGATION 

6.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
Financial risk Specific parts of the financial 

commentary are based on forecasting 
information and will therefore be subject 
to review and potential amendments 
during the course of the remainder of the 
year.  Should the business rate 
forecasting change then the reserve 
allocation identified at section 2.4 will be 
reviewed 

The report contains information regarding 
a proposal to access LLEP funding.  The 
conditions attached to the grant are 
detailed at Appendix A

7. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, 
SAFEGUARDING etc.)

7.1 No impact analysis is required.

8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

8.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising as a result of this report.

9. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

9.1 These are included in the report

10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

10.1 As part of good governance it is important members are kept updated in 
respect of the financial position of the Council expenditure during the course 
of the year.

11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

11.1 None

30



12. APPENDICES

12.1 Appendix A – General Fund Capital Programme and Reserves Statement

12.2 Appendix B – Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership (GLLEP) 
DRAFT funding requirements and risks

13. BACKGROUND PAPERS

13.1 Cabinet - 20 December 2018:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=164&MId
=3628&Ver=4

31



This page is intentionally left blank



Reserves Statement - General Fund Appendix A

2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
Description Estimate Slippage/ Forecast New Indicative Updated Base Slippage Updated Indicative Indicative Indicative Indicative

Base Virements Outturn Bids Base Before Slippage Base Base Base Base Base

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Growth
Town Centre Development:

1 St Peter's Hill Redevelopment 5,500 580 6,080 - - -
2 St Peter's Hill Public Realm 1,660 1,660 - - -
4 Shop front scheme 130 130 130 130 130 - 130
5 Xmas Lights 40 - 40 - 40
6 Property Acquisition 7,999 7,999 - - -
7 Investment and Regeneration Strategy 3,900 - 6,100 6,100 3,900 10,000
8 Purchase of REP vehicle 55 55 - - - - - - - - -
9 Local Authority Controlled Company 2,550 250 1,400 - 1,400 1,400

10  Guildhall Arts Centre - Theatre lighting & visual equipment 35 35 15 15 15
11  LED screen 103 - 103 103
12  Tourism Signage 50 50 50 50 50 50
13   Meres Gas Boilers 65 65 65
14   Market Stall Covers 50 21 - 29 29
15   Car Park Barriers 50 - - 50 50
16   Queen Elizabeth Park - Provision of visitor car park 30 30 30 - 30
17   Wyndham Park Car Park 29 - 29 - 29
18   Deepings Leisure Centre - Replacement of boilers 70 70 - -
19   Meres - P.A. System 35 35 - -
20   Car Park Ticket Machines 150 120 - -
21  Wyndham Park Improvement Works 357 36 400 - 0
22  Wyndham Park Improvement Works - Footwall lighting 25 27 - 0

12,957 10,525 18,082 6,497 225 6,562 5,379 11,941 50 - - -
Commercial -

23 Safe Warm and Well (formerly Essential Home Grant Assistance) 75 2 - 75 0 - -
24 Disabled Facilities Grant 797 320 797 - 797 797 797 797 797 797
25 Empty Homes Financial Assistance 50 - - 50 - - -
26 Street Scene Vehicle Procurement 311 200 511 310 313 310 - 310 57 260 434 140
27 Vehicle Replacement Programme 102 61 163 705 486 705 - 705 655 660 660 600
28 Pool Car Vehicles 247 247 - - - - - - - -
29 Electric Vehicle Charging Points 39 39
30 CCTV Matrix 23 23 23
31 CCTV Springfield Rd 14
32  Pool Car Keyless Entry 14 14 14
33 Wheelie Bin Replacements 175 175 100 112 100 - 100 100 100 100 100
34 Grounds Maintenance Vehicles 450
35  Trade Waste Bins 24 24 - 24 24 24 24 24

1,757 300 1,921 1,973 1,036 1,973 - 1,973 1,633 1,841 2,015 1,661-

Resources
36 Financial System Upgrade 50 80 - - - - - -
37  Sandbox Firewall 40 42 17 - 65 65 - - - -
38  Equilogic based storage 20 20 - - - - - -
39  UPS replacement 15 15 - - - - - -
40  Server and storage infrastructure 115 115 115 - - - 115
41  Cash Receipting System 40 40 40 - - - -
42  GDS Compliance Programme 80 80 80 - - - -

125 42 132 235 - 235 65 300 - - - 115--
-

TOTAL GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROGRAMME 14,839 10,867 20,135 8,705 1,261 8,770 5,444 14,214 1,683 1,841 2,015 1,776

33



Reserves Statement - General Fund Appendix A

GENERAL FUND RESERVES STATEMENT Budget Budget Budget Budget 
Book Book Book Book

Actual Balance Fcast Fcast Balance Fcast Fcast Balance Fcast Fcast Balance Fcast Fcast Balance
as at Movement as at Movement as at Movement as at Movement as at

31 March 2018 in year 31 March 2019 in year 31 March 2020 in year 31 March 2021 in year 31 March 2022
Comments £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund

Discretionary Reserves
1 Stamford Arts Centre Bequest 33 0 33 0 33 0 33 33
2 Training and Development Member training 15 0 15 (11) 4 0 4 -1 3
3 Events and Festivals 233 (140) 93 (93) 0 0 0 0
4 Apprenticeships Develop Mgt Training 36 (36) 0 0 0 0 0 0
5 Waste and Recycling initatives Fuel duty increases 156 (80) 76 0 76 0 76 76
6 ICT investment 173 147 320 (112) 208 (22) 186 -22 164
7 Economic Development & Growth Local Plan 169 (120) 49 0 49 0 49 49
8 Service Improvement Reserve 1,065 (1,065) 0 0 0 0 0 0
9 Community Fund 150 (108) 42 (42) 0 0 0 0

10 Local Priorities Reserve 10,921 (3,767) 7,154 (1,243) 5,911 1,090 7,001 546 7,547
11 Regeneration 0 1,200 1,200 282 1,482 (417) 1,065 (369) 696
12 Invest to Save 802 198 1,000 (168) 832 (101) 731 (101) 630
13 Housing Delivery Unspent DFGs 347 0 347 0 347 0 347 347
14 Ward Members 56 (56) 0 0 0 0 0 0  
15 Property Maintenance 0 110 110 0 110 0 110 110
16 Food Waste 170 (170) 0 0 0 0 0 0

14,326 (3,887) 10,439 (1,387) 9,052 550 9,602 53 9,655
Governance Reserves

17 Insurance Reserve 337 (87) 250 0 250 0 250 250
18 Pensions Reserve - Former Employees 466 (54) 412 (56) 356 (58) 298 (60) 238
19                                - Current EmployeesPensions Reserve - Current Employees 1,768 (757) 1,011 (877) 134 (134) 0 0
20 BR & CTS Volatility 1,729 (397) 1,332 0 1,332 0 1,332 1,332
21 Building Control (7) 8 1 31 32 41 73 23 96
22 Football 3G Pitch Grant condition 25 0 25 0 25 25 25
23 SEA Reserve 260 (58) 202 (50) 152 49 201 49 250

4,578 (1,345) 3,233 (952) 2,281 (102) 2,179 12 2,191

24 Total General Revenue Reserves 18,904 (5,232) 13,672 (2,339) 11,333 448 11,781 65 11,846

Homelessness 21 (21) 0 0 0 0
New Burdens Grant 111 (23) 88 88 88 88
Neighbourhood Planning Grant 74 29 103 7 110 7 117 7 124
Garden Towns & Villages 90 90 90 90 90
Custom Build 30 30 (23) 7 7 7
Planning Delivery 90 (14) 76 (76) 0 0 0
DHP top  up 7 7 7 7 7
Individual Electoral Registration 118 (16) 102 (21) 81 (7) 74 74
LGA Commercial 6 6 6 6 6
Garden Village 385 (114) 271 (200) 71 (71) 0 0
Historic England 57 57 57 57 57
Grantham Growth 69 69 69 69 69

25 Government Grants Received 1,058 (159) 899 (313) 586 (71) 515 7 522

26 TOTAL Earmarked Revenue Reserves 19,962 (5,391) 14,571 (2,652) 11,919 377 12,296 72 12,368

27 Working Balance 2,835 (36) 2,799 (65) 2,634 0 2,634 2,634

28 Total Revenue Reserves 22,797 (5,427) 17,370 (2,717) 14,553 377 14,930 72 15,002

29 Capital Reserve
30 LAMS Reserve Residual scheme liability 304 (286) 18 0 18 0 18 18
31 St Peters Hill Development 2,607 (2,607) 0 0 0 0 0 0
32 General Fund Capital Reserve 1,171 (412) 759 (750) 9 0 9 9
33 Useable Capital Receipts Reserve 3,794 (1,581) 2,213 (300) 1,913 (150) 1,763 0 1,763

34 Total Capital Reserves 7,876 (4,886) 2,990 (1,050) 1,940 (150) 1,790 0 1,790

35 Total General Fund Reserves 30,673 (10,313) 20,360 (3,767) 16,493 227 16,720 72 16,792

34



Appendix B

Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership (GLLEP) DRAFT funding 
requirements and risks

No. Requirements / Risk
1 Project Change clawback:  should the centre no longer be used for the purposed as 

indicated, 50% of any increase in the value of the project up to maximum Grant amount 
is subject to clawback

2 Asset Disposal clawback: should the asset be disposed of within a 5 year period, 50% of 
any increase in the value of the Project asset up to a maximum of the Grant amount is be 
subject to clawback

3 Output Non-delivery clawback: should the centre not achieve the appropriate outputs, 
clawback is applicable to the proportion of non-achieved outputs as part of the overall 
project

4 Audit Obligations: to comply with audit requirements and report appropriately under 
investigation (may occur up to 12 years after expiry of agreement) 

5 Document Retention: requires documentation to be retained for a 10 year period after 
the final claim has been processed (estimated retention until 2030)

6 Insurance: SKDC to ensure insurance is kept at appropriate indemnity levels: public 
liability insurance (£5 million) and employer's liability insurance (£10 million)

7 Freedom of Information Obligation: to respond to Freedom of Information requests 
within timescales required by the GLLEP

8 Press and Publicity Requirements: to not make or consent to making a public statement 
or announcement without the prior written consent of the GLLEP

9 Output Delivery: to ensure outputs set are achievable in relation to the project. Should 
SKDC fail to meet these targets, clawback arrangements will be triggered

10 Revenue funding: SKDC is to ensure the remaining revenue funding for the project is met 
to complete the centre and enable output delivery

11 Procurement: to ensure the procurement of the cinema contractor and subsequent 
works are satisfactory and in line with public procurement rules

35



This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Report of: Councillor Matthew Lee
The Leader of the Council

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Council

31 January 2019

The Leader’s report on urgent decisions (LDS342)

Decision
Proposal:

Legislative and Constitutional requirement

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Jo Toomey, Principal Democracy Officer
Tel: 01476 40 61 52
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 8 January 2019

Margaret Welton, Senior Research and Support Assistant
Tel: 01476 40 64 15
E-mail: margaret.welton@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 16 January 2019

Lee Sirdifield, Assistant Chief Executive, Transformation and 
Change (Monitoring Officer)
Tel: 01476 40 65 24
E-mail: l.sirdifield@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 16 January 2019

Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council
E-mail: matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 16 January 2019

SUMMARY

This report informs Members decisions made by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet 
Members under urgency provisions since the last report was made to Council on 27 
September 2018.

37

Agenda Item 8



RECOMMENDATION

The Council is asked to note the contents of the report.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 In accordance with Part 5, Section 19 of the Local Authority (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012, the Leader of the Council is required to submit regular reports to the 
Council on executive decisions taken under special urgency provisions. The 
report should include the number of decisions so taken and a summary of the 
matters in respect of which those decisions were taken. The Leader must 
submit at least one report annually to the Council.

1.2 Since the last report was brought to Council on 27 September 2018, one non-
key decision has been taken under urgency provisions.

1.3 An urgent non-key decision was made on 20 December 2018 by the Deputy 
Leader of the Council. The decision was made to enter into a 1-year lease of 
the second floor of the Maltings, Wharf Road, Grantham. The decision was 
made to enable SKDC to break the lease it already had lease with the landlord 
on 19 December 2018 in order to enter into a new lease which covered only 
part of the premises; this space would then be sub-let to InvestSK. The new 
lease, which has run from 20 December 2018, is only for part of the space that 
had previously been let to the Council, thereby releasing SKDC from 
approximately £18,000 rent plus the service charge, insurance and other 
running costs.

1.4 The decision was made under the urgency provisions because of the 
timescales in which it was confirmed that InvestSK would be unable to relocate 
to the Council Offices at St. Peter’s Hill, Grantham and the uncertainty of who 
would be taking on the lease.

1.5 A copy of report number PD0107, together with the decision notice, is attached 
as Appendix 1 to this report.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 This is a statutorily required report.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no resource implications arising from this report.

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and no high risks were 
identified.

38



5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 Not applicable; this is a statutory report providing a summary of past activity.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. Financial comments 
relating to the decision are detailed in report number PD0107.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 To comply with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and 
Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 and the Council’s 
Constitution, the Leader is required to make regular reports to Council on 
decisions taken using urgency provisions as detailed at clauses 17.7.2 (key 
decisions) and 17.7.3 d) (non-key decisions) as set out in the Council’s 
Constitution.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 There are no comments from other relevant services.

10. APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix 1: Report number PD0107 and the Decision Notice

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.1 Article 17 of the Council’s Constitution, which sets out arrangements for the 
making of decisions under urgency provisons
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3745/Public%20reports%2
0pack%2012th-Oct-2018%2010.46%20Constitution.pdf?T=10 

11.2 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2089/contents/made  

39

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3745/Public%20reports%20pack%2012th-Oct-2018%2010.46%20Constitution.pdf?T=10
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/g3745/Public%20reports%20pack%2012th-Oct-2018%2010.46%20Constitution.pdf?T=10
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2089/contents/made


This page is intentionally left blank



NON KEY DECISION:
REPORT TO CABINET MEMBER

DECISION TO BE TAKEN BY: Councillor Kelham Cooke
The Deputy Leader of the Council

REPORT AUTHOR: Lianne Smith, Property Officer

REPORT NO. PD0107

DATE: 20 December 2018

SUBJECT OF
NON KEY
DECISION:

To enter into a 1 year lease of the second Floor, The
Maltings, Wharf Road, Grantham, NG31 6BH

CABINET 
MEMBER REMIT:

Business Transformation and Commissioning

CRIME AND 
DISORDER 
IMPLICATIONS:

None

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 
ACT 
IMPLICATIONS:

This report is publicly available on the Council’s website 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk via your Council and Democracy 
link

INITIAL EQUALITY 
IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT

Carried out and appended 
to report?

Not Applicable

Full impact assessment 
required?

No
BACKGROUND 
PAPERS: None

(1) PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.1 The building will be used to establish, support and promote the identity of
the InvestSK team as part of the Council’s focus on economic development and
regeneration priorities.

41

Appendix 1

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


(2) RECOMMENDATION(S)

To authorise SKDC to enter into a lease of the Second Floor, The Maltings, Wharf 
Road, Grantham, NG31 6BH on the terms set out in the report for a 1 year term with 
the ability to terminate at any time during the term giving 3 months written notice.

(3) REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 To allow SKDC to break the current lease with the landlord on 19th December 
2018 and then to enter into a new lease with the landlord on part only, which will then 
be sublet to Invest SK.

3.2 The terms of the lease between the Landlord and South Kesteven District Council 
are:

Lease: A new Internal Repairing & Insuring lease
Term: 1 Year
Rent: £20,954 per annum 
Option To Break: The tenant may determine the lease at any time during the 
term upon giving 3 months written notice.
Use: Offices
Service Charges: 
The tenant will pay, as rent, a fair and reasonable proportion of the costs 
incurred by the Landlord in providing common services. These are 14.5% of 
the costs incurred. No extraordinary expenses are planned or anticipated for 
the current year. 
Commencement Date: As soon as practically possible 
Insurance Premium: The apportioned annual premium attributable to this 
suite for the current year is £282.27 [To Be Confirmed] (annual renewal each 
January). 
Costs: Each party to be responsible for their own legal and other
professional costs incurred in creating the lease.
VAT: All sums quotes are exclusive of VAT which is payable at the
prevailing rate.

3.2 An existing revenue budget allocated within the current financial year has been
identified to cover costs associated with leasing these premises.

3.3 A sub lease between SKDC and Invest SK is to be put in place, mirroring the 
terms of the lease between SKDC and the landlord.

3.4 To relocate Invest SK to other offices within Grantham would be considerably 
disruptive and expensive. The cost involved with relocating and setting up in a new 
premise for a short term of 6 months would be a misuse of Council money. Invest SK 
in the medium term will look to relocate within St Peters Hill in Grantham and 
therefore relocating twice in one year would be unreasonable and expensive when a 
temporary option is available in their current location. SKDC are currently not in a 
position to allow Invest SK to take occupation within the Council offices due to the 
shortage of space available during the Public Realm works.

42



3.5 An SLA agreement will be set up which will incorporate the facilities and 
maintenance provisions carried out by SKDC.

3.6 Invest SK will be responsible for the internal repair and insuring of the premises 
for the duration of the licence period, including all associated running costs.

3.7 Invest SK will occupy the demised area for a term of six months at a rent of 
£1,746.17 (excl. VAT) per month. This is a short term option until an office space is 
available at St Peters Hill in Grantham. SKDC will be liable for the service charge 
with a proportion set at 14.5% but the cost will be recovered back from Invest SK in 
full. Two car parking spaces will be granted at the front of the building and the 
provision of five spaces in the car park allocated on Station Road, Grantham.

3.8 SKDC will terminate the head lease once Invest SK are in a position to relocate 
within St Peters Hill. SKDC will then serve notice on the landlord giving 3 months’ 
notice.

3.9 Ward members have not been approached to comment due to the tight 
timeframe available. SKDC previously served notice to break the lease on 19th 
December 2018 and if the lease is not signed by both parties on or before 19th 
December 2018 there is a risk that the break will not be actioned and SKDC will be 
liable for another year on the whole office. SKDC no longer have a requirement for 
the whole floor. 

3.10 The proposed new lease, which will run from 20th December 2018 is only for 
part of the current office and will release SKDC from £18,000c rent, plus service 
charge, insurance and other running costs.

(4) COMMENTS FROM FINANCIAL SERVICES 

The costs associated with this proposed lease will be recharged to Invest SK (a 
wholly owned Council company).  Invest SK will meet these costs from the proposed 
financial allocation the Council makes to the company on an annual basis.  

(5) COMMENTS FROM LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

The current lease from the landlord to the tenant must be effectively terminated 
before any new lease is completed. The proposed break in the terms of the new 
lease can only be effectively exercised if the proposed lease is excluded from the 
provisions of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954.

The proposed sub-let must be permitted in the terms of the head lease between the 
landlord and the Council. 

(6) OFFICER CONTACT

43



Chris Pike – Assets and Estates Manager – 07811 845679

(7) DATE DECISION EFFECTIVE:  20 December 2018

Urgent decision required due to timescales in which it was confirmed 
that Invest SK would be unable to relocate to the St Peter’s Hill Council 
Offices and the uncertainty of who would be taking on the lease. 

44



URGENT CABINET 
MEMBER DECISION

Decision:   

That approval is given for SKDC to enter into a lease of the Second 
Floor, The Maltings, Wharf Road, Grantham, NG31 6BH on the term 
set within report PD0107 for a one year term with the ability to 
terminate at any time during the term giving three months written 
notice.

(1) Details of Decision

To seek authorisation to enter into a lease of the Second Floor, The Maltings, 
Wharf Road for a one year term with the ability to terminate at any time 
during the term giving three months written notice.

(2) Considerations/Evidence

The building will be used to establish, support and promote the identity of the 
InvestSK team as part of the Council’s focus on economic development and 
regeneration priorities.

(3) Reasons for Decision:

To allow SKDC to break the current lease with the landlord on 19th December 
2018 and then to enter into a new lease with the landlord on part only, which 
will then be sublet to Invest SK.

The terms of the lease between the Landlord and South Kesteven District 
Council are:

Lease: A new Internal Repairing & Insuring lease
Term: 1 Year
Rent: £20,954 per annum 
Option To Break: The tenant may determine the lease at any time 
during the term upon giving 3 months written notice.
Use: Offices
Service Charges: 
The tenant will pay, as rent, a fair and reasonable proportion of the 
costs incurred by the Landlord in providing common services. These 

45



are 14.5% of the costs incurred. No extraordinary expenses are 
planned or anticipated for the current year. 
Commencement Date: As soon as practically possible 
Insurance Premium: The apportioned annual premium attributable to 
this suite for the current year is £282.27 [To Be Confirmed] (annual 
renewal each January). 
Costs: Each party to be responsible for their own legal and other
professional costs incurred in creating the lease.
VAT: All sums quotes are exclusive of VAT which is payable at the
prevailing rate.

An existing revenue budget allocated within the current financial year has 
been identified to cover costs associated with leasing these premises.

A sub lease between SKDC and Invest SK is to be put in place, mirroring the 
terms of the lease between SKDC and the landlord.

To relocate Invest SK to other offices within Grantham would be considerably 
disruptive and expensive. The cost involved with relocating and setting up in 
a new premise for a short term of 6 months would be a misuse of Council 
money. Invest SK in the medium term will look to relocate within St Peters Hill 
in Grantham and therefore relocating twice in one year would be 
unreasonable and expensive when a temporary option is available in their 
current location. SKDC are currently not in a position to allow Invest SK to 
take occupation within the Council offices due to the shortage of space 
available during the Public Realm works.

An SLA agreement will be set up which will incorporate the facilities and 
maintenance provisions carried out by SKDC.

Invest SK will be responsible for the internal repair and insuring of the 
premises for the duration of the licence period, including all associated 
running costs.

Invest SK will occupy the demised area for a term of six months at a rent of 
£1,746.17 (excl. VAT) per month. This is a short term option until an office 
space is available at St Peters Hill in Grantham. SKDC will be liable for the 
service charge with a proportion set at 14.5% but the cost will be recovered 
back from Invest SK in full. Two car parking spaces will be granted at the 
front of the building and the provision of five spaces in the car park allocated 
on Station Road, Grantham.

SKDC will terminate the head lease once Invest SK are in a position to 
relocate within St Peters Hill. SKDC will then serve notice on the landlord 
giving 3 months’ notice.

Ward members have not been approached to comment due to the tight 
timeframe available. SKDC previously served notice to break the lease on 

46



19th December 2018 and if the lease is not signed by both parties on or 
before 19th December 2018 there is a risk that the break will not be actioned 
and SKDC will be liable for another year on the whole office. SKDC no longer 
have a requirement for the whole floor. 

The proposed new lease, which will run from 20th December 2018 is only for 
part of the current office and will release SKDC from £18,000c rent, plus 
service charge, insurance and other running costs.

Conflicts of Interest

(Any conflict of interest declared by any other Cabinet Member consulted in 
relation to the decision to be recorded).

NONE

Dispensations

(Any dispensation granted by the Monitoring Officer in respect of any declared 
conflict of interest to be noted).

NONE

Decision taken by:

Name: Councillor Kelham Cooke
Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Business Transformation and 
Commissioning

Date of Decision: 20 December 2018

Date of Publication of Record of Decision: 20 December 2018

Date decision effective:  20 December 2018

This decision has been taken under Special Urgency provisions due 
to the timescales in which it was confirmed that Invest SK would be 
unable to relocate to the St Peter’s Hill Council Offices and the 
uncertainty of who would be taking on the lease.

The decision is not therefore subject to call-in.

47



This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Report of: Councillor Matthew Lee
The Leader of the Council

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Council

31 January 2019

Minutes of Cabinet meetings approved since 22 
November 2019 (LDS343)

Decision
Proposal:

No decision required

Relevant Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Matthew Lee
The Leader of the Council

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Signed off by:

Approved for 
publication:

Jo Toomey, Principal Democracy Officer
Tel: 01476 40 61 52
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 14 January 2019

Margaret Welton, Senior Research and Support Assistant
Tel: 01476 40 64 15
E-mail: margaret.welton@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 16 January 2019

Ben Bix, Head of Governance
Tel: 01476 40 65 15
E-mail: ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk 
Date: 16 January 2019

Councillor Matthew Lee, the Leader of the Council
E-mail: matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date: 16 January 2019

SUMMARY

The minutes of the Cabinet meetings held on 1 November 2018 and 20 December 2018 
as approved by the Cabinet at its meetings on 20 December 2018 and 17 January 2019 
respectively.

The minutes of the Cabinet’s meeting held on 17 January 2019 will be made available 
at a future meeting of the Council following approval by the Cabinet at its meeting on 7 
February 2019.

49

Agenda Item 9

mailto:j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.welton@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:ben.bix@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:matthew.lee@southkesteven.gov.uk


RECOMMENDATION

Council is asked to note the minutes of the Cabinet meetings held on 1 November 2018 
(Appendix 1) and 20 December 2018 (Appendix 2) as appended to report number 
LDS343.

1. BACKGROUND TO REPORT

1.1 South Kesteven District Council operates a Leader and Cabinet arrangement 
as established under the Local Government Act 2000. In 2010 the Council 
adopted the strong Leader model under provisions within the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.

1.2 The Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 
2000 set out the responsible body for different functions, specifically those 
functions that are not executive functions, those that may be determined by an 
authority’s executive and those functions that are not the sole responsibility of 
the executive. All other functions are, by default, executive functions and would 
therefore, under the Council’s arrangements, be determined by the Cabinet. 
The requirements of these Regulations mean that at its meetings, the Cabinet 
may make some decisions outright whilst in other instances it may make 
recommendations to Council. 

1.3 The minutes of the Cabinet’s meetings are made available to the Council to 
note the decisions taken by the Cabinet. The agendas, reports to Cabinet and 
individual Cabinet Member decisions are all available on the Council’s website 
should Members wish to read them.

2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Not applicable.

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

3.1 There are no resource implications as a result of this report. 

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

Risk has been considered as part of this report and no specific high risks were 
identified. 

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

5.1 An equality analysis is not applicable to this report. Analysis will be carried out 
as required in respect of the matters brought before the Cabinet for decision.

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

50



7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 There are no financial comments arising as a result of this report.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 There is a requirement to publish Cabinet decisions in accordance with the 
Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012. These minutes have been recorded 
to inform Members of the deliberations at the meeting.

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

9.1 There are no comments from other relevant services.

10. APPENDICES

10.1 Appendix 1: The approved minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 1 November 
2018.

10.2 Appendix 2: The approved minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 20 
December 2018.

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

11.1 None.

51



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES
CABINET
THURSDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2018

THE LEADER: Councillor Matthew Lee (Chairman)
THE DEPUTY LEADER: Councillor Kelham Cooke

CABINET MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Helen Goral
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Councillor Nick Neilson
Councillor Nick Robins
Councillor Jacky Smith
Councillor Adam Stokes

NON-CABINET MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Mike Exton
Councillor Robert Reid
Councillor Brenda Sumner
Councillor Brian Sumner
Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew
Councillor Linda Wootten
Councillor Ray Wootten

OFFICERS

Strategic Director, Growth (Paul Thomas)
Strategic Director, Resources (Debbie Muddimer)
Solicitor to the Council (Lucy Youles)
Assistant Director, Commercial & Operational (Ian Yates)
Assistant Director, Housing (Harry Rai)
Assistant Director Resources (Richard Wyles)
Head of Governance (Ben Bix)
InvestSK (Steve Bowyer)
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

53

Appendix 1



CO45. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

(1) Minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2018

The minutes of the meeting held on 6 September 2018 were agreed as a correct 
record subject to clarification that the Directors of DeliverSK were the Leader, the 
Deputy Leader and the Chief Executive, which differed from the membership 
described in report DSK002.

(2) Minutes of the meeting held on 4 October 2018

The minutes of the meeting held on 4 October 2018 were agreed as a correct record.

CO46. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (IF ANY)

No interests were disclosed.

CO47. ARTICLE 4 DIRECTION, STAMFORD

Decision:

The Cabinet recommends that Council 

1. Confirms the Article 4 Direction for Stamford Conservation Area as 
drafted and attached as Appendix 1 to report number DM15 and to 
cancel the existing Warrenne Keep Article 4 Direction, both effective 
from 1 December 2018

2. The introduction of a fee of £206 for each planning application arising 
from the Direction

3. That any income surplus generated from the designation of this Article 4 
Direction is ringfenced for future investment within the area covered by 
the Direction.

Reasons for decision

1. Report number DM15 of the Cabinet Member for Growth and Communications 
including the draft Article 4 Direction for Stamford Conservation Area (attached 
as Appendix 1 to the report)

2. The decision made by Cabinet on 12 April 2018 to approve the 
commencement of a formal process to remove permitted development rights 
for specific types of development within the Stamford Conservation Area

3. The increasing number of alterations being carried out under permitted 
development rights that may be harmful to the character and appearance of 
the Conservation Area

4. Feedback from a period of public consultation on the proposed introduction of 
an Article 4 Direction for Stamford Conservation Area including written 
representations and feedback from drop-in sessions

5. Comments submitted by Stamford Town Council and Stamford Civic Society

54



6. The proposed £206 fee was the same as the fee payable by householders for 
an application for works that are not permitted development

7. The proposed application fee was intended to cover the cost of processing an 
application 

8. Comments made by Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 17 October 
2018

9. The equality analysis attached as Appendix 3 to report number DM15 

Other options considered and rejected

To not designate an Article 4 Direction or for the Direction to apply to a smaller area. 
However, there has been no area-wide control over permitted development across 
the Stamford Conservation Area since it was first designated in 1967 and there has 
since been a gradual erosion of the architectural details and of historic fabric to a 
significant number of unlisted buildings to the detriment of the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area as a whole.

* * *

Report number DM15 was introduced by the Cabinet Member for Growth and 
Communications, who explained that the report was being presented to Cabinet 
following a period of public consultation and discussions by the Growth Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. Together with support for this Direction, members of the Cabinet 
considered how similar Directions could be made in other areas of the district. 

Support for the introduction of an Article 4 Direction for Stamford Conservation area 
was articulated by a non-Cabinet Member from Stamford, while the support of the 
Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee was conveyed by its Chairman.

In introducing the Direction, work would be undertaken to support residents living in 
the Conservation Area to understand how the changes would affect them and what 
would be acceptable. Any lessons from the implementation of the Direction in 
Stamford Conservation Area would inform the rollout of other Directions across the 
district. It was noted that the cost of processing applications made as a result of the 
Article 4 Direction would need monitoring.

Cabinet Members agreed the recommendations in the report, together with an 
additional recommendation that any surplus income generated through planning fees 
arising from the Article 4 Direction should be ringfenced for future investment in the 
area covered by the Direction.

CO48. *PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING ENFORCEMENT POLICY

Decision:

Cabinet 

1. Approves the draft South Kesteven District Council Private Sector 
Housing Enforcement Policy 

55



2. Delegates authority to the Cabinet Member for Housing to make minor 
amendments to the policy that may be required to support its continued 
effectiveness

Reasons for decisions

1. Report number ENV708 of the Cabinet Member for Housing and the draft 
policy attached as Appendix 1 to the report

2. The number of homes in the private rented sector in South Kesteven totalled 
approximately 12,700

3. The priority theme within the Housing Strategy 2017-2021 to encourage, 
support and regulate the private sector to provide well managed, safe homes

4. New legislation that introduced a range of measures to target the small 
minority of landlords and agents who rent out substandard accommodation 
and harass their tenants

5. Provisions within the Housing Act 2004 that allow the Council to recover 
reasonable expenses related to certain functions

6. The summary of responses received as a result of consultation on the draft 
policy

7. The initial equality analysis attached as Appendix 2 to report number ENV708

Other options considered and rejected

The Council is not obliged to introduce civil penalties as an alternative to prosecution 
and could continue with the current enforcement options. However, the enforcement 
policy will still require updating to reflect the recent changes to legislation.

* * *

In introducing report number ENV708 the Cabinet Member for Housing referred to 
the proportion of homes within the district that fell within the private rented sector. He 
also explained legislative changes designed to protect people living in the private 
rented sector and drew Members’ attention to the table of proposed penalties, which 
was included within the draft policy.

The introduction of civil penalties provided an alternative to criminal proceedings. In 
discussing the proposed penalties, Members were interested in whether there was 
any way to ensure certainty of payment, for example, whether a local land charge 
could be applied to a property should any landlord refuse to pay. While the Council 
could not impose a local land charge, it could enforce payment through the County 
Court. Members wanted the level of penalty and the surety of enforcement for non-
payment to send a message to any landlords attempting to let poor quality 
accommodation that the cheapest route for them was to maintain the property and 
keep it in good order.

Reference was also made to measures that were in place and being introduced to 
help insulate homes and reduce heating costs.

Cabinet Members agreed the recommendations in report number ENV708.

56



CO49. *WARD MEMBER GRANT SCHEME

Decision:

Cabinet:

1. Notes the performance of the Ward Member grant scheme pilot during 
the first 6 months as set out in report number CFM476, together with 
details of organisations that have benefited from grants

2. Agrees that any unspent monies at the end of the year be transferred to 
the main Community Fund

3. Recommends to Council that an allocation be made for 2019/20 as part 
of the budget framework proposals in February 2019 and if agreed this 
should include a further review of the scheme after 6 months, i.e. as at 
30 September 2019

4. Approves the amendments to enable the streamlining of the approval 
process as set out in paragraph 1.11 of report number CFM476

Reasons for decision

1. Report number CFM476 of the Cabinet Members for Finance and 
Communities, Health, Wellbeing and Skills

2. Recommendations made by the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee at its meeting on 23 January 2018 prior to the introduction 
of the pilot scheme

3. The pilot scheme approved by Cabinet on 8 March 2018, together with 
approval by Council of a one-year budget allocation of £56,000

4. An update on performance of the pilot scheme which was considered by the 
Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 9 October 
2018

5. Overview information on the take-up of the scheme and grants issued, 
including the organisations that had benefited from the scheme

6. Recommendations made by the Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee relating to the approval process for grants, which was considered 
to be disproportionate given the scale of the sums involved

7. The application form used for the pilot scheme during 2018/19 (attached as 
Appendix A to report CFM476)

Other options considered and rejected

To not renew the Ward Member grant scheme following the 2018/19 pilot.

* * *

The Cabinet Members for Communities, Health, Wellbeing and Skills and Finance 
introduced report number CFM476 and explained the premise behind the pilot Ward 
Member grant scheme. 

57



It was noted that the pilot had received the support of the Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee, which had also made suggestions 
about streamlining the grant approval process and the fields within the application 
form, together with arrangements for submitting “joint forms where more than one 
Councillor wished to make a grant to the same body. 
 
A number of Members said that they had received positive feedback about the 
scheme. Reference was made to the first SK Lottery draw, (which had recently taken 
place) and the benefits it also provided for local good causes.

Members noted that a number of causes that had benefited from Ward Member 
grants had been incorrectly categorised and it was suggested future reports should 
list beneficiaries without categories to avoid this.

The recommendations in the report were agreed with the full support of all Cabinet 
members.

CO50. HOUSING STRATEGY 1 YEAR DELIVERY PLAN

Decision:

Cabinet notes the content of the six-month progress update against the year 
one delivery plan as attached at Appendix A of report number HS07

Reasons for decision

1. Report number HS07 of the Cabinet Member for Housing
2. Appendix A to report HS07, showing the status of the agreed actions within 

the year one delivery plan of the Council’s Housing Strategy and comments 
thereon

3. Outcomes in the Housing Strategy which were designed to improve the 
delivery of affordable housing, provide choice to enable people to live 
independently, ensure quality housing in the private rented sector and support 
housing need

Other options considered and rejected

Not applicable  

* * *

Report number HS07 gave an overview of progress against the Housing Strategy’s 
year-one action plan. Members spoke about the strategy’s focus on housing delivery. 
Specific reference was made to opportunities for using Council-owned plots of land to 
deliver additional houses, with an emphasis on single occupancy units. The Cabinet 
Member for Housing added that he would welcome any suggestions of Council-
owned land that may be suitable for development, both from other Councillors or 
members of the public.

58



Cabinet agreed the recommendations in report HS07.

CO51. TENANTS SURVEY RESULTS

Decision

Cabinet notes the outcome of the Survey of Tenants and Residents as set out 
in Appendix A to report number HS8

Reasons for decision

1. Report number HS8 of the Cabinet Member for Housing
2. The summary of findings from the Survey of Tenants and Residents included 

Appendix A of report HS8
3. The overview of proposed actions listed in report HS8

Other options considered and rejected

That the costs and efforts to improve satisfaction levels outweigh potential benefits 
and that 83% satisfaction is an acceptable position.

* * *

In presenting the results of the 2018 Survey of Tenants and Residents, which were 
attached as Appendix A to report HS8, the Cabinet Member for Housing explained 
the structure of the survey and highlighted the headline findings and actions that had 
arisen as a result of the responses received.

Anti-social behaviour was identified by 29% of respondents as the element of service 
that was most important to them. Members felt that it was important to understand 
respondents’ interpretation of that question and whether they had experienced anti-
social behaviour or whether they were grateful the service was available in the event 
that they should experience anti-social behaviour. If issues of anti-social behaviour 
were identified, then the Council should look at opportunities for services to join up to 
address that behaviour and use of tools such as the community trigger.

Questions were asked about the frequency with which the survey was conducted; 
ordinarily there would be five years between each survey, but SKDC had decided to 
re-survey residents within the next two to three years to gain feedback on the actions 
the Council was taking as a result of this survey.

The Cabinet Member for housing was asked about the demographics of survey 
respondents and what action could be taken to capture feedback from younger 
tenants; a majority of responses were received from tenants who were over 60 years 
of age.

The recommendations in report HS8 were agreed by the Cabinet.

14:55 – Councillor Robins left the meeting

59



CO52. MATTERS REFERRED TO CABINET BY THE COUNCIL OR 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

Report number LDS324 of the Leader of the Council summarised the activity of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees since the last report was presented to Cabinet on 
4 October 2018.

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
stated that its next meeting, scheduled for 27 November 2018 had been cancelled. 
He added that a workshop on health and wellbeing which was scheduled to take 
place on 12 November 2018, was being postponed until January 2019.

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Reference was made to the meeting that was scheduled for 15 November 2018 and 
whether there was a possibility that updates on culture and arts projects would be 
available. 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny had nothing to add to the 
update that was included in the agenda.

Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman of the Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee summarised the 
items that had been considered at its last meeting. He added that the agenda for the 
Committee’s next meeting would include the quarter 2 outturn report for 2018/19.

Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman of the Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee had passed given his 
apologies for the meeting; in doing so he confirmed that the Committee had not met 
since the last meeting of the Cabinet and that consequently there were no 
recommendations to bring to the Cabinet’s attention.

CO53. REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED FROM NON CABINET MEMBERS

Report number LDS326 of the Leader of the Council informed the Cabinet that no 
non-Cabinet Members had submitted requests to make representations prior to the 
publication of the agenda for this meeting. Since the agenda was published, two non-
Cabinet Members had indicated that they wished to make representations. 

The first representation was made by Councillor Ray Wootten, who referred to a 
meeting held between members of the Grantham Charter Trustees and a 
representative from the Belvoir hunt. He referred to comments that had been made 
on social media by anti-hunt protesters, which included threats and intimidation. He 
stated that Councillors had a responsibility to represent the whole community and 

60



listen to all sides of an argument and should be able to carry out their duties without 
fear and intimidation. A comment was added that it was the responsibility of all 
Councillors to challenge anti-social behaviour and threats.

Councillor Baxter, who made the second representation, posed three questions. The 
first question related to land at Tattershall Drive and the plans that were in place to 
discourage unauthorised vehicle access to the site. Following a previous 
representation from local residents, a fence had been erected however this had been 
damaged when travellers arrived on the site. A further meeting with residents had 
been scheduled to discuss how best to address the issues around the land to the 
benefit and satisfaction of local residents.

The second question related to the likely impact of the national Budget on SKDC’s 
medium and long-term financial forecasts, particularly in relation to changes in 
respect of business rates. The Cabinet Member for Finance stated that he welcomed 
the announcement that business rates would be cut by one-third for two years for 
shops, cafes and restaurants with a rateable value below £51,000. It was hoped that 
an initial assessment of the impact of the Budget would be incorporated into the 
quarter 2 outturn report that would be presented at the next meeting of the Growth 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The wider outcome would be better understood 
next year following completion of the Government’s spending review and the fairer 
funding review.

Councillor Baxter’s final question related to the proposed disposal strategy of the 
existing Deepings Leisure Centre when a new replacement facility had been put in 
place. The Leader as the relevant Cabinet Member stated that as part of ongoing 
work, a briefing would be made available for all Councillors and the local community.

CO54. CABINET FORWARD PLAN

Report number LDS327 of the Leader of the Council gave an indication of the items 
that would be presented to Cabinet over the following 12-month period. The report 
also included items that were scheduled to be considered at Council meetings during 
the municipal year. 

Brief comments were made about work being undertaken by the Environment 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on street lighting and a review that was being 
undertaken by Lincolnshire County Council. Reassurance was given that lights for 
which SKDC was responsible remained switched on and that there were no plans to 
turn those lights off.

CO55. ITEMS RAISED BY CABINET MEMBERS INCLUDING REPORTS ON 
KEY AND NON KEY DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED 
POWERS.

Report number LDS325 of the Leader of the Council informed the Cabinet of 
decisions that had been taken by individual Members since the last meeting of the 
Cabinet was held on 4 October 2018.

Appendix A: Purchase of land in Grantham

61



CO56. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting was closed at 15:23.

DATE DECISIONS EFFECTIVE:

Decisions CO48 and CO49 (2) and (4) as made on Thursday, 1 November 2018 can 
be implemented on Monday 12 November 2018, unless subject to call-in by the 
Chairman of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee or any five members of 
the Council from any political group.

The recommendations made at item CO47 stand referred to Council on 22 November 
2018 while recommendation CO49(3) will be captured as part of the 2019/20 Budget-
setting process.

62



MINUTES
CABINET
THURSDAY, 20 DECEMBER 2018

THE LEADER: Councillor Matthew Lee (Chairman)
THE DEPUTY LEADER: Councillor Kelham Cooke

CABINET MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Helen Goral
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley
Councillor Jacky Smith
Councillor Adam Stokes

NON-CABINET MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Bob Adams
Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Bob Sampson
Councillor Linda Wootten
Councillor Ray Wootten

OFFICERS

Chief Executive (Aidan Rave)
Strategic Director, Growth (Paul Thomas)
Strategic Director, Resources (Debbie Muddimer)
Assistant Chief Executive, Transformation & Change (Lee Sirdifield)
Assistant Director, Commercial & Operational (Ian Yates)
Assistant Director, Housing (Harry Rai)
Assistant Director Resources (Richard Wyles)
Head of Governance (Ben Bix)
InvestSK (Steve Bowyer)
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

CO57. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Neilson and Robins.

Councillor Exton, the Chairman of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, also apologised as he was unable to attend the meeting.

63

Appendix 2



CO58. MINUTES FROM 1 NOVEMBER 2018

The minutes of the meeting held on 1 November 2018 were agreed as a correct 
record.

CO59. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (IF ANY)

No interests were disclosed.

CO60. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 2018/19: MID-YEAR UPDATE 
(RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL)

The Cabinet Member for Finance presented report number CFM480 which gave 
Cabinet members the full year forecast position for the General Fund and Housing 
Revenue Account for 2018/19 as at the end of Quarter 2 (30 September 2018). He 
drew Members’ attention to the table that showed the General Fund budget position 
by directorate and the information about the business rate pilot scheme and 
proposals for the use of financial gains arising from that.

Reference was made to the benefits of having a property maintenance reserve, 
which included provision for any necessary repairs to be carried out more 
expediently.

A question was raised about the payback period for projects and activities funded 
from the ‘invest to save’ reserve. While reference was made to a guideline payback 
period of 3 years, the actual payback period would be business case and 
circumstance specific. It was also noted that the reserve could be used for both 
capital and revenue activity. 

Discussions also ensued about the governance arrangements to support those 
decisions that were delegated to individual Cabinet Members in conjunction with the 
Section 151 Officer. Bids for funding from the ‘invest to save’ reserve would require 
the submission of a business case and it was anticipated that any decision to 
approve funding would follow the Council’s normal decision-making arrangements, 
which would provide Members with an opportunity to call-in decisions and mean that 
any decisions that had been taken would be reported to the Cabinet. Where an item 
was considered potentially controversial, it was suggested that it may be appropriate 
if it was subject to pre-decision scrutiny, there was however recognition that there 
were occasions where decisions needed to be made quickly. It was suggested that 
the committees and governance working group could consider the arrangements for 
how these delegated decisions could be made including whether they might appear 
on the Forward Plan.

Cabinet members agreed that to ensure consistency of language with other decisions 
of Council, those decisions that were delegated to individual Cabinet Members 
should be taken “in consultation with” the Section 151 Officer. 

The Cabinet AGREED to note the forecast 2018/19 revenue and capital outturn 
position for both the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account as at the end of 
Quarter 2 and RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL:

64



1. The allocation of the projected business rate financial growth as set out at 
paragraph 5.9 of report number CFM480

2. The changes to earmarked reserves as set out at paragraph 5.13 of report 
number CFM480

3. That approval to utilise the Invest to Save reserve be delegated to the Cabinet 
Member for Finance in consultation with the Section 151 Officer

4. That approval to utilise the property maintenance reserve and the ICT reserve 
be delegated to the Deputy Leader of the Council in consultation with the 
Section 151 Officer

CO61. COUNCIL TAX BASE 2019/20 (RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL)

The Cabinet Member for Finance presented report number CFM477 which asked the 
Cabinet to recommend the Council Tax base for 2019/20 and set the collection rate 
for council tax.

The Cabinet:

1. RECOMMENDED TO COUNCIL the approval of the tax base for the year 
2019/20 as detailed at Appendix A of report number CFM477 equating to 
47,125.70

2. APPROVED the collection rate for Council Tax is set at 98.80%

CO62. JOINT MUNICIPAL WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY FOR 
LINCOLNSHIRE (KEY DECISION)

The Cabinet Member for Environment stated that the Lincolnshire Joint Municipal 
Waste Management Strategy (appended to report number ENV710) had been 
brought to Cabinet for ratification. The Strategy had been developed by the 
Lincolnshire Waste Partnership, which comprised all of the collection authorities in 
Lincolnshire together with Lincolnshire County Council as the disposal authority and 
the Environment Agency. The partners were keen to ensure that the service provided 
in Lincolnshire represented value for money; the strategy also emphasised 
innovation and reducing materials entering the waste stream.

Reference was made to the food waste pilot that was underway in South Kesteven 
and the announcement of the Government’s waste management strategy. Cabinet 
Members asked whether there were any trends in the kind of authorities that had 
food waste collection schemes. As an alternative to food waste recycling schemes, 
one non-Cabinet Member asked whether consideration would be given to supplying 
composters at the cost of the bin.

Cabinet Members noted that when the strategy was considered by Lincolnshire 
County Council it had received unanimous support. 

65



Whilst there were discrepancies in the materials that were accepted for recycling in 
each local authority area, discussions were underway to streamline the materials that 
were accepted so that there was greater consistency.

Cabinet Members asked that their thanks to the Cabinet Member for Environment, 
the Assistant Director, Commercial and Operational and the Head of Street Scene be 
placed on record.

The Cabinet AGREED to adopt the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for 
Lincolnshire as set out in Appendix 1 of report number ENV710.

CO63. MATTERS REFERRED TO CABINET BY THE COUNCIL OR 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

Report number LDS333 of the Leader of the Council summarised the activity of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees since the last report was presented to Cabinet on 
1 November 2018.

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
stated that the meeting that had been scheduled for December 2018 had been 
cancelled. The Committee was next due to meet on 12 February 2019 when Chief 
Superintendent Chris Davidson from Lincolnshire Police would attend to talk about 
modern slavery and the Lincolnshire Community Safety Team. Reference was also 
made to a presentation by the Police and Crime Commissioner on modern slavery, to 
which Members of the Council would receive an invitation. He added that the 
Committee had been due to be addressed on the NHS 5-year plan by John Turner, 
but this had been delayed because of the impact of the negotiations regarding the 
exit of Great Britain from the European Union.

Culture and Visitor Economy Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman had nothing to add to the contents of report number LDS333.

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee was not in 
attendance at the meeting.

One non-Cabinet Member who was present at the meeting asked about the work that 
the Committee had done in respect of street lighting; Cabinet Members state that 
they were happy with the general policy that the Committee had proposed however 
additional work was required with regard to financing. Through dialogue there was an 
indication that once this work had been completed it would be welcomed for the 
policy to be brought directly to Cabinet for decision rather than being returned to the 
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee for further consideration.

66



Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman of the Growth Overview and Scrutiny Committee was not in 
attendance at the meeting.

Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman of the Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee said that its focus 
going forward would be loneliness. He also commended a presentation that had 
been given by the Head of Arts at the Committee’s previous meeting. Attention was 
drawn to two grant schemes (one for heritage and one for arts) on which members of 
the Rural Overview and Scrutiny Committee had been briefed. 

The Committee had also received an update on the use of the promotional trailer; 
where the trailer was unable to access villages because of its size, a gazebo or 
marquee was being deployed instead.

CO64. ITEMS RAISED BY CABINET MEMBERS INCLUDING REPORTS ON 
KEY AND NON KEY DECISIONS TAKEN UNDER DELEGATED 
POWERS.

Report number LDS334 of the Leader of the Council informed the Cabinet of 
decisions that had been taken by individual Members since the last meeting of the 
Cabinet was held on 1 November 2018.

 Appendix 1: Approval of a new lease with Stamford Cricket Club, Uffington 
Road, Stamford

 Appendix 2: Extensions to mid-Lent fairs in Grantham and Stamford
 Appendix 3: Private Sector Housing Assistance Policy
 Appendix 4: Funding proposals following changes to the senior management 

structure

CO65. REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED FROM NON CABINET MEMBERS

Report number LDS335 of the Leader of the Council informed the Cabinet that no 
non-Cabinet Members had submitted requests to make representations prior to the 
publication of the agenda for this meeting. Since the agenda was published, one non-
Cabinet Member had indicated that they wished to make representations. 

Councillor Baxter referred to land that had recently been acquired by the Council. 
Reports had been presented to recent meetings of Cabinet and Council, both of 
which were exempt under paragraph 3 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended). Councillor Baxter asked whether it would be possible to confirm in public 
session the location of the land together with the status of the acquisition. The 
Leader would update Councillor Baxter outside the meeting since the information 
was still classified as commercially sensitive. The Leader stated that once the 
acquisition process was complete and as soon as it was possible, details would be 
publicly announced.

67



Councillor Baxter also asked whether there was any update on the location of the 
new leisure centre for the Deepings and a disposal strategy for the current centre. 
The Leader stated that a number of sites were being actively considered and it was 
his intention to bring a full report to the February meeting of Cabinet.

Finally, Councillor Baxter asked about an outline planning application for land 
adjacent to Millfield Road in Market Deeping, which had been submitted by 
Lincolnshire County Council. The land to which the application related was subject to 
a current application for designation as a village green. The Leader stated that he 
was aware that the planning application had been submitted and that he did not know 
the date by which the village green application would be determined. The Cabinet 
Member for Growth and Communications and the Strategic Director, Growth were 
asked to update Councillor Baxter outside the meeting.

CO66. CABINET FORWARD PLAN

Report number LDS336 of the Leader of the Council gave an indication of the items 
that would be presented to Cabinet over the following twelve-month period. The 
report also included items that were scheduled to be considered at Council meetings 
during the municipal year.

Members noted that an update to the plan was required in respect of the asset 
management strategy; the date by which the item was due to be considered by 
Cabinet had been changed to allow prior consideration by the Growth Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. Members also noted that the report and recommendations of 
the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee on street lighting were scheduled 
to be brought before Cabinet early in 2019.

CO67. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting was closed at 15:00.

68


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Communications (including Chairman's Announcements)
	6 Designation of Monitoring Officer
	7 Changes to Budget Framework 2018/19
	CFM484 Appx A Cap Prog & Reserves
	Appendix B

	8 The Leader's report on urgent decisions
	PD0107 - 071218 - NKD The Maltings (003) (002)
	KC PD0107 20.12.18

	9 Minutes of Cabinet meetings approved since 22 November 2019
	Minutes , 01/11/2018 Cabinet
	Minutes , 20/12/2018 Cabinet


